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operated as a barber shop for a while, and later a concessions operation was located there, 
although this was still not considered to be within the theater building itself. Patrons 
could buy candy and drinks there.4o In the late 1940s, prices for movie tickets were nine 
cents for children (if prices were over ten cents, tax had to be collected), and thirty-five 
cents for adults.41 The lounge on the second floor of the building was used as another 
social gathering space where people could meet between shows. There was a separate 
"colored" entrance on the third level, reached from the outside stairs, but these patrons 
were not allowed in the lounge area.42 

W. H. Odum continued to lease the building through part of 1936. Marion Sprinkle 
leased the building on March 9, 1936 to J. E. Massie for ten years beginning in the 

- middle of 1936. Rents were $287.50/month in 1936, $300/month in 1937-38, 
$312.50/month in 1939-40, and $325/month from 1941-1945.43 Mr. Massie 
immediately sub-leased the building to Cardinal Amusement Company. This sub-lease 
included all the same stipulations set forth in his agreement with Marion Sprinkle, and 
included the sale of all the equipment in the building and a half interest in the 
equipment in the soda shop to Cardinal Amusement Company for the sale price of 
$26,500.44 The lease also stated that" ... J. E. Massie agrees to not engage in the show or 
amusement business in Beaverdam Township during the term of this lease or any renewal 
thereof ... " .45 

On September 10, 1945, Marion Sprinkle leased the Colonial Theater to Publix Bamford· 
Theatres of Delaware. This lease period was from January 1, 1946 to December 31, 
1955.46 Publix then sub-leased the building to Weldon Theatre Corporation of 
Statesville, North Carolina on August 29, 1952.47 The 1952 lease included an inventory 
of equipment in the building, some of which may have been original fixtures. The 
recorded furnishings included the ticket machines and display boards (in the "box 
office"); display frames and coming attractions displays (in the "front of theater"); a 

4OIbid. 
41 Ibid. 
42Ibid. 
43Haywood County Deed Book 95, p. 229. 
44Haywood County Deed Book 95, p. 231. 
45Ibid. 
46Haywood County Deed Book 153, p. 353. Publix Bamford Theaters ran theaters in Canton, Asheville, 
West Asheville, and Bristol, Tennessee (Interview with Billy Wolcott, formerly associated with Publix 
Theaters, by Sybil Bowers, 1 Apri11999). 
47Deed Book 153, p. 353. 
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popcorn machine, display case, hot plate, and crushed ice container (in the "candy 
room"); an end table, flag, and marquee letters (in the "stock room"); a ticket chopper, 
floor lamps, water cooler, carpet, leather covered benches, and stair carpets (in the "lobby 
of theatre"); chairs, leather covered benches, carpet, a divan, love seat, candy vending 
machine and floor lamps (in the "upstairs lobby"); 170 seats and carpet in the aisles (of 
the "balcony"); 450 seats and carpet in the aisles (of the" auditorium It); a traveler curtain, 
drapes, screen, and automatic curtain puller (on the "stage"); a step ladder and hose (in 
the "boiler room"); a wooden cabinet, desk and chair, safe, typewriter, desk lamp, and 
carpet (in the "office"); and a monitor, lamps; rewind, generator, electric fan, soda and 
acid extinguisher, ceiling fan, and Western Electric Sound equipment (in the "machine 
room").48 

Soon after the Colonial Theater began operations, Marion Sprinkle also leased the Strand 
theater from R. W. Sherrill on November 21, 1935. This was a five year lease, at a rent 
of $160/month.49 Marion Sprinkle then sub-leased the Strand Theater building to J. E. 
Massie on December 3, 1935.50 By leasing the Strand, Sprinkle helped to insure that the 
"competing" theaters were part of his business, and were not running the same movi~.s at 
the same time. . 

The Colonial Theater remained as the central focus of the town's social life from its 
opening through the 1960s. During the August 30, 1940 flood in Canton, the theater 
closed briefly and was showing movies again by September 3, 1940.51 The Strand . 
Theater on Main Street, and another theater, the· Imperial, at the comer of Main and 
Academy Streets, also operated through the 1960s, but never drew the crowds that the 
Colonial did. Theaters in Waynesville such as the Park and the Strand, also showed first­
run movies. Some residents of Canton went to see movies in Asheville, often at the 
luxurious Imperial Theater there (built in 1922), but the Colonial in its prime was every 
bit as elaborate. As in many small towns, residents began to find new places to go for 
entertainment as transportation became easier and commercial development spread out 
from downtown. 

48Ibid. 
49Haywood County Deed Book 94, p. 541. 
50Haywood County Deed Book 95, p. 227. 
51 Floods on Pigeon River, Vicinity of Canton and Clyde, North Carolina, Knoxville, Tennessee: 
Tennessee Valley Authority, February 1959, p. 29. This publication noted that the Colonial Theatre was 
damaged on August 30 with rugs and seats damaged. Water stood twenty-six inches deep in the barber 
shop at the front of the theater building and Smathers, Carol. "Movies Shown at the Colonial Theater". 

ItJ:N.OOllI 



Section number __ 8_ 8 Colonial Theater 
Haywood County, North Carolina 

Architecture Context 
The Colonial Revival style of the Colonial Theater in Canton is the only example of this 
style in the town of Canton and possibly the only example for movie theaters in general 
across the state. It is quite different from the other brick two and three-story primarily 
standard Commercial style buildings located throughout the downtown, and was also 
unique and more refined in its design in comparison to the earlier Strand theater in 
Canton. The Strand was built in a more typical Commercial style, and was later 
converted to retail use. The Colonial Theater was built to look more like a residence 
than a business. It stands alone on the street, surrounded even in the 1930s primarily by 
smaller buildings, automobile repair shops, and service stations. The use of a gable 
roofline in the front with a parapeted roof to the rear also stands out as an unusual design 
element among primarily flat-roofed commercial buildings. 

In comparison, Charles Benton, as part of the firm of C. C. Benton & Sons Architects by 
this time, designed the Mimosa Cinema in Morganton (1939) in an Art Deco style.52 

Other theaters in western North Carolina built close to the time of the Colonial Theater 
but also in the Art Deco style include the Parkway Theaters in West Jefferson (ca. 1~40) 
the Lyric Theater in Sylva (ca. 1927), currently quite altered from its original design, and 
the Fine Arts Theater in Asheville (1946). One unusual theater, the Alva Theater in 
Morganton (1929) was designed in a Spanish Revival style. 

Charles Collins Benton (1888-1960) was a native of Wilson, North Carolina, and was· 
educated at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He began practicing architecture 
in Wilson in 1907. Frank Warthall Benton went into partnership with his brother Charles 
beginning in 1915, and continued as an architect on his own after 1935 designing many 
WPA projects in Wilson.53 The Benton & Benton firm existed from 1915-1935.54 Most 
of the firm's work was in the eastern part of the state, but they also worked in western 
North Carolina.55 

52Cotton,1. Randall. Historic Burke: An Architectural Inventory of Burke County, North Carolina, 
Historic Burke Foundation, Inc. 
53Bainbridge and Ohno, "Wilson, North Carolina Historic Buildings Inventory", 1980. 
54Ibid. 
55Interview with Lyman Laughinghouse, draftsman for the firm e.e. Benton & Son, beginning in the 
1940s. While Mr. Laughinghouse did not work for the earlier Benton & Benton firm, he remembers 
visiting many projects in the western part of the state, including a theater in Marion. 
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Some of the work of the Benton & Benton firm (1915-1935) in Greenville, North 
Carolina included the William H. Long House (1917); and the Albion Dunn House (ca. 
1919). Other work in the eastern part of North Carolina included Fire Station No.1 in 
Rocky Mount (1924); the Bank of Farmville, the Selma Graded School, and the 
Montgomery County Courthouse.56 The firm also designed the Mimosa Cinema in 
Morganton (1939) in an Art Deco style. However, the Colonial Theater is more modest 
than some of their other existing commercial buildings. For example, the Gold 
Professional Building (1910) in Wilson, designed by Benton & Moore, is a much larger, 
more elaborately detailed Neoclassical building- than the Colonial Theater. However, like 
the Colonial, it is carefully detailed with many Classical elements.57 Another theater, no 
longer extant, that was designed by Charles C. Benton in the Colonial Revival style was 
the Pitt Theatre (1935) in Greenville, North Carolina.58 The Imperial Theater Building 
(1931) in Roanoke Rapids, North Carolina was also designed by Benton & Benton, in the 
Spanish Colonial Revival style.59 The Fire Station in Rocky Mount is a smaller building 
in scale like the Colonial, but has more of a Mediterranean or Spanish Revival style, with 
a tile roof.6O 

Additional buildings designed by the Benton & Benton firm in Edenton, North Carolina 
include the Colonial Revival style William D. Pruden, Jr. House (1927); and the 
Neoclassical style Citizens Bank of Edenton (1924).61 Benton & Benton also designed 
the Colonial Revival style Claude Augustus Harrison House (1934); and the Classical 
Revival Peoples Bank (ca. 1917) in Williamston, North Carolina, and the Farmers­
Banking and Trust Company Building, in a Neoclassical style (1921) in Robersonville.62 

56Cotter, Michael, ed. The Architecural Heritage of Greenville, North Carolina, Greenville, North 
Carolina: Greenville Area Preservation Association, 1988, p. 157. 
57 "Historic and Architecural Resources of the Tar-Neuse River Basin: Region L", Raleigh, North 
Carolina: North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources. 
58The Architecural Heritage of Greenville, North Carolina, p. 157. 
5~utchko, Thomas R. National Register nomirrtttion for "Roanoke Rapids Historic District", 1998, 
p.329. 
6OMearns, Kate. Central City Historic Buildings Inventory, Rocky Mount, North Carolina, Rocl)' Mount: 
Central City Revitalization Corporation, 1979. 
61Butchko, Thomas R. Edenton: An Architectural Portrait. The Historic Architecutre of Edenton, North 
Carolina., Edenton, North Carolina: Edenton Woman's club, 1992. 
62Butchko, Thomas R. Martin Architectural Heritage: The Historic Structures of a Rural North Carolina 
County, Williamston, North Carolina: Martin County Historical Society, 1999, pp. 73 and 94-95. 
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Boundary Description 
The boundaries of this nomination are indicated on the accompanying county tax map, 
and include all of lot 8781. (Pin number 8657-70-8781) 

Boundary Justification 
All of the property currently associated with the Colonial Theater was historically part of 
the original tract of land purchased by Marion Sprinkle for development of the theater 
(Haywood County deed book 84, page 395 and deed book 84, page 506). 
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Colonial Theater Photographs 

The following information applies to all of the photographs, except where noted. 

Name of Property: Colonial Theater 
55-57 Park Street 
Canton 
Ha ywood County 
North Carolina 

Photographer: Sybil Argintar Bowers 
May 1999 . Date of photos: 

Location of 
original negatives: 

Division of Archives and History 
One Village Lane 
Asheville, North Carolina 28803 

1. Front elevation, view SE 

2. Main auditorium and balcony, view NE 

3. Ceiling medallion in auditorium 

4. Decorative bracket under balcony 

5. Balcony, view NW 

6. Second floor, view E 

7. Projection room, view E 

8. Side elevation, view W 
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